
REGULAR MEETING  
RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  

PUBLIC NOTICE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING  
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 25, 2024 

12:00 P.M.  
228 TEXAS AVENUE, SUITE A, NEW BOSTON, TX 75570 

Notice is hereby given pursuant to V.T.C.A., Government Code, Chapter 551, that the Board of 
Directors of the Riverbend Water Resources District will conduct a meeting; open to the public, 
on Wednesday, September 25, 2024, at 12:00 p.m., at the Riverbend Water Resources District 
(“Riverbend”) office, in the Conference Room located at 228A Texas Avenue, New Boston, TX 
75570. 

The Board of Directors is authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act to convene in closed or 

executive session for certain purposes. These purposes include receiving legal advice from its 
attorney (Section 551.071); discussing real property matters (Section 551.072); discussing gifts 
and donations (Section 551.073); discussing personnel matters (Section 551.074); discussing 
security personnel or devices (Section 551.076); or discussing economic development matters 
(Section 551.087). If the Board of Directors makes a determination to go into executive session 
on any item on this agenda, the Presiding Officer will announce that an executive session will be 
held and will identify the item to be discussed and provision of the Open Meetings Act that 
authorizes the closed or executive session. 

A G E N D A 

I. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL 

II. INVOCATION & PLEDGE 

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

The Board of Directors allows individuals to speak to the Board. Prior to the meeting, 
speakers must sign in on the public comment sheet. The time limit is five (5) minutes 
per speaker. Subject to the provisions set forth under Section 551.007 of the 
Government Code 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding August 28, 2024 Regular Meeting 
minutes. 

1



B. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of RESO 20240925-01 
adopting the Member Entities’ True-Up for use in FY 2025. 

C. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of RESO 20240925-02 
adopting the Regional Water Facility Fund Debt Rate. 

Action item: Consider motion for approval of the Consent Agenda. 

V. REGIONAL ENTITY REPORTS 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with Sulphur River Basin 
Authority. 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with TexAmericas Center. 

C. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with REDI. 

VI. AGENDA ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 

The Board of Directors will consider, discuss, and if appropriate, take action on the 
following item(s):

A. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of RESO  20240925-03 
adopting the True-Up for the City of Maud, Texas for use in FY 2025. 

RWRD and City of Maud staff met on Wednesday, July 17th, to discuss the True-
Up to the water and wastewater services agreement.  The proposed True-Up for FY 
2024 results in an increase in the monthly contract amount for FY 25 of $3046.84.  
This would bring the monthly contract invoice amount for FY 25 to $14,374.84.  
Staff recommends approval. 

Action item: Consider motion for approval of RESO 20240925-03 approving the 
FY 2024 City of Maud Service Contract True-Up for use in FY 2025. 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution appointing 
the officers of the Board of Directors for FY 2025. 

Typically, the Directors have followed a rotation system for officers each year.  
This allows for maximum participation and leadership opportunities for each 
director.  Following that system, the proposed officers for this year would be: 

Lynn Davis, President 
Sonja Hubbard, Vice President  
Tina-Veal Gooch, Treasurer  
Van Alexander, Secretary 
Steve Mayo, Past President 

2



Action Item: Consider motion for approval of RESO 20240925-04 appointing the 
officers of the Board of Directors for FY 2025. 

C. Discussion and possible action regarding the Riverbend Calendar and Board 
Meeting Schedule for FY 2025. 

Typically, the yearly calendar has been presented and approved without a 
resolution. The proposed calendar and board meeting schedule for FY 2025 is 
included in the packet for consideration.  Staff recommends approval. 

Action Item: Consider motion to approve the proposed FY 2025 calendar as 
presented in the packet. 

D. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution adopting the 
Revised 2024 Administrative Member Fund Budget, the Revised 2024 Wet 
Utilities Fund Budget, and the Revised 2024 Regional Water System Facilities 
Fund Budget of Riverbend Water Resources District. 

Presentation of the Revised 2024 Administrative Member Fund Budget, the 
Revised 2024 Wet Utilities Fund Budget, and the Revised 2024 Regional Water 
System Facilities Fund Budget by Tara Houck. 

Action Item: Consider motion for approval of RESO 20240925-05 adopting the 
Revised 2024 Administrative Member Fund Budget, the Revised 2024 Wet 
Utilities Fund Budget, and the Revised 2024 Regional Water System Facilities 
Fund Budget of Riverbend Water Resources District.

E. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution adopting the 
FY 2025 Administrative Member Fund Budget, the FY 2025 Wet Utilities 
Fund Budget, and the FY 2025 Regional Water System Facilities Fund Budget 
of Riverbend Water Resources District. 

Presentation of the FY 2025 Administrative Member Fund Budget, the FY 2025 
Wet Utilities Fund Budget, and the FY 2025 Regional Water System Facilities Fund 
Budget by Tara Houck. 

Action Item: Consider motion for approval of RESO 20240925-06 adopting the 
FY 2025 Administrative Member Fund Budget, the FY 2025 Wet Utilities Fund 
Budget, and the FY 2025 Regional Water System Facilities Fund Budget of 
Riverbend Water Resources District. 

F. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution authorizing 
Executive Director/CEO to select Simmons Bank as the lender for funding for 
the construction of a new Industrial Wastewater Plant. 

Staff has been working with our financial advisor, Marti Shew with Hilltop 
Securities, to secure funding for the new industrial wastewater plant.  She 
approached five banks asking for proposals.  She received two responses, one from 
Regions Bank and the other from Simmons Bank.  The Term Sheet Analysis for 

3



the two proposals is included in the packet, along with Hilltop’s recommendation.  
Ms. Shew recommends moving forward with Simmons Bank.  After reviewing all 
the documents in both proposals, staff agrees and would recommend moving 
forward with Simmons Bank.  Should the board approve authorizing staff to select 
Simmons Bank, we would accept the term sheet provided by them and begin to get 
the bond documents ready.  The thought would be to try and have those documents 
ready for approval at the October board meeting. 

Action Item: Consider motion for approval of RESO 20240925-07 authorizing 
Executive Director/CEO to select Simmons Bank as the lender for funding for the 
construction of a new Industrial Wastewater Plant. 

VII. RIVERBEND REPORTS 

A. Board Members 

B. Executive Director/CEO 

VIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Board of Directors is authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act to convene in 
closed or executive session for certain purposes. These purposes include receiving 
legal advice from its attorney (Section 551.071); discussing real property matters 
(Section 551.072); discussing gifts and donations (Section 551.073); discussing 
personnel matters (Section 551.074); discussing security personnel or devices (Section 
551.076); or discussing economic development matters (Section 551.087). If the Board 
of Directors makes a determination to go into executive session on any item on this 
agenda, the Presiding Officer will announce that an executive session will be held and 
will identify the item to be discussed and provision of the Open Meetings Act that 
authorizes the closed or executive session. 

IX. NEXT REGULAR MEETING 

Riverbend Regular Meeting, Wednesday, October 16, 2024 at 12:00 p.m. at Riverbend 
Offices, 228A Texas Avenue, New Boston, Texas 75570. 

X. ADJOURNMENT 

Kyle Dooley 

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/CEO 
Riverbend Water Resources District 

*Persons with disabilities who plan to attend the RWRD Board of Directors’ meeting and who 
may need auxiliary aids or services are requested to contact the RWRD Administrative Offices 
at (903) 831-0091, as soon as possible. All reasonable efforts will be taken to make the 
appropriate arrangements.

4



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  
RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 25, 2024 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM IV. A. 
August 28, 2024 

Regular Meeting Minutes  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5



Regular Called Meeting 
Riverbend Water Resources District    

Board Meeting Minutes  
August 28, 2024 

228 Texas Avenue, Suite A, New Boston, Texas 75570   

M I N U T E S 

I. Call to Order, Roll Call, and Establishment of Quorum and Certification of Notice

Pursuant to a notice posted on the District website, the Chair, Steve Mayo, President 
of the Board, called the meeting to order at 12:01 p.m.     

Directors Present: 
Steve Mayo, President 
Lynn Davis, Vice President  
Tina Veal-Gooch, Secretary  
Sonja Hubbard, Treasurer 
Van Alexander, Past President 

Directors Absent:
None 

Administration Present: 
Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/CEO 
Eli Hunt, Director of Operations 
Becky Melton, HR Manager/Executive Assistant 

Public Present: 

Please see the attached list for additional guests.  

II. Invocation & Pledge 

Lynn Davis led the invocation and the pledge of allegiance. 

III. Public Comments 

None. 

IV. Special Agenda Item 

A. Steve Mayo presented the Regional Leadership Award to Fred Milton for his leadership 
and dedication to Riverbend and to regional water development.  

6



V. Consent Agenda Items 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding the July 24, 2024 Regular Meeting minutes. 

A motion was made by Tina Veal Gooch and seconded by Van Alexander to approve 
the Consent Agenda Item as presented. The motion passed unanimously. 

VI. Regional Entity Reports 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with Sulphur River Basin Authority 
(SRBA). 

David Widemon provided that all their financial partners have paid their contribution to 
SRBA’s efforts.  The board is continuing to review concepts for a new logo.  They are 
continuing work with TWDB on the Flood Infrastructure Fund (FIF) grant application Mr. 
Wiedmon had a good meeting with Titus County Fresh Water Supply District that resulted 
in their commitment to exeute a partnership with SRBA. He met with Upper Trinity 
Regional Water District to discuss the inflation adjustment issue. They do support working 
towards an agreement on that. They talked about potential in kind support in addition to 
their monetary support. A tour of the Ralph Hall site is scheduled for the end of October. 
We are starting to develop the information we will apply to the legislature to become part 
of the Rural River Authorities Coalition. We are in need of examples of rural needs in the 
basin to present to them.  Upper Trinity also reached out to SRBA about working with their 
conservation fund in a funding capacity so there is potential for funding for SRBA through 
that avenue as well.  A meeting was held with the stakeholders and the senator to discuss 
the log jam at highway 37. No action taken. 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with TexAmericas Center (TAC). 

Scott Norton, Executive Director, provided an update. The TAC board has reviewed 
revised 2024 and proposed 2025 budgets. The board approved a purchase tow locomtives 
from the DEAAG grant they were awared with the help of ATCOG. The board also 
approved amendments to their forestry management plan to entice prospects that see the 
trees on the property as a hinderance to moving forward on projects. Investments for 
upgrades on the Area D warehouses were approved as well. There was a $360,000 increase 
to the environmental clean up contract with the Army to close that ESCA Contract out. 
They approved to add 500 acres to their Qualified Sites Program on the north end of the 
west campus near New Boston. A fifth amendment to the contract with Braven was also 
approved to allow them to clear additional property on their site. Braven also sent their 
application to the comptroller’s office on April 1st  for their school district tax abatement 
through the new Jobs, Energy, Technology, & Innovation Act (JETI) and it is now 
considered complete. Now it will be submitted to Hooks ISD and the governor for approval 
so that TAC can negotiate the final contract. They are closing this afternoon on the purchase 
of the Phelps Tire property on Spur 86 to ensure the entrance to the TAC footprint is clean. 
They’re working with a lithium company on leasing a building with the option to purchase 

7



around 330 acres for their production on the TAC property with no lithium discharge on 
the property. They will be a huge water user at 1.5 mgd. The location of the discharge on 
that usage will be discussed with Riverbend as the closing of that contract gets closer.  
Maverick Pipe sold the building they purchased from TAC to Rowe Casa. No action taken. 

C. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with Ar-Tex REDI. 

Sonja Hubbard provided an update. On Friday, August 23rd, the State of Arkansas approved 
$16.7 Billion towards the lengthening and strengthening of the runway at Texarkana 
Regional Airport. That, combined with funds that came from help provided by 
Congressman Nathaniel Moran and Congressman Bruce Westerman, allows the project to 
move forward.  
No action taken. 

VII. Agenda Items for Individual Consideration 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution authorizing the Executive 
Director/CEO to execute an agreement for Retirement fund management with the Texas 
County and District Retirement System (TCDRS).  

Kristina Fox with TCDRS made a presentation to the board regarding the system 
origination and program details. TCDRS was created by the Texas Legislature in 1967 to 
provide Texas county and district employees with retirement, disability and survivor 
benefits. As a water conservation and reclamation district, Riverbend qualifies to join 
TCDRS. Riverbend staff has compared the current retirement plan with TCDRS and has 
come to the conclusion that TCDRS will provide Riverbend staff with better benefits when 
compared to the current retirement plan. TCDRS combines portions of a 401(k) and a 
defined benefit plan, like the Teacher Retirement System. Employees save for their own 
retirement. TCDRS offers its members a lifetime retirement benefit. Kyle Dooley, 
Executive Director/CEO provided that this lifetime benefit is what makes this retirement 
system a better option than our current retirement plan. The effective date of the change 
would be October 1, 2024. There is an increased cost to the District when compared with 
the current plan, but this cost has been included in the budget documents for FY2025 that 
will be presented in Agenda Item C.  Funds are available in the budget for this possible 
increase. Staff recommends approval.  

A motion was made by Sonja Hubbard and seconded by Van Alexander to approve RESO 
20240828-01 authorizing the Executive Director/CEO to execute an agreement for 
retirement fund management with the Texas County and District Retirement System. The 
motion passed unanimously.  

B. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution adopting the 2025 
Member Entities’ True-Up. 

Kyle Dooley provided that TWU made their annual presentation of the Member Entities’ 
True-Up report on Wednesday, July 17th.  The proposed water production rate is shown to 
decrease from $1.2606/1000 Gallons used to $1.0895/1000 Gallons used.  This is a 13.57% 

8



decrease overall.  The administrative overhead cost is proposed to go from 6.72% to 6.49%.  
In addition to this decrease, a proposal was made regarding the expansion of Highway 82. 
The original Lake Texarkana Water Supply Corporation Members were offered the option 
to leave their True-Up rate at $1.2606/1000 gallons used. This will allow the excess funds 
over the required $1.0895 to be placed in an interest bearing account to put forth on the 
debt for the Highway 82 project. Those members asked for a template resolution to take to 
their council members for approval before October 1st. We are awaiting those executed 
resolutions.  The board can act on approving the true-up at this meeting, but typically has 
chosen not to act until the September meeting when the RWRD budget is considered and 
approved. No action taken. 

C. Discussion regarding Regional Water Facility Fund Budget and Debt Service Rate for FY 
2025. 

Kyle Dooley provided that there have been no updates or changes to this budget or the 
proposed rate since it was presented in August. The board can act on approving the 
proposed debt service rate at this meeting, but typically has chosen not to act until the 
September meeting when the RWRD budget is considered and approved. No action taken. 

D. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution approval of a resolution 
approving the City of Maud Service Contract True-Up. 

Kyle Dooley provided that there have been no changes or updates to this proposed Ture-
Up. Typically, the board has chosen not to act until the September meeting when the 
RWRD budget is considered and approved. No action taken.  

E.  Discussion regarding the Riverbend Budgets. 

i. Revised 2024 Budgets for the Administrative Member Fund, the Wet Utilities Fund, 
and the Regional Water System Facilities Fund. 

Kyle Dooley presented the proposed changes to the FY 2024 Administrative Member 
Fund Budget, the Wet Utilities Fund Budget, and the Regional Water System Facilities 
Fund Budget.  

ii. Proposed 2025 Budgets for Administrative Member Fund, Wet Utilities Fund, and the 
Regional Water System Facilities Fund. 

Kyle Dooley presented the proposed FY 2025 budgets for the Administrative Member 
Fund, Wet Utilities Fund, and the Regional Water System Facilities Fund. The 
proposed Wed Utilities Fund Budget includes a 3% cost of living adjustment. 

No action taken. 

F. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution contributing funds to the 
Sulphur River Basin Authority (SRBA) to help support its water quality protection and 
water planning efforts in the basin. 

9



Kyle Dooley provided details on this item. For several years, SRBA has been administering 
the Clean Rivers Program for the Sulphur River Basin along with being engaged in state 
and regional water planning.  Historically, SRBA has struggled to secure funding to support 
its mission from sources inside the basin itself.  In the past few years, that has started to 
change as cities and water districts in the Sulphur River Basin have started to help fund 
SRBA annually. Riverbend’s member entities benefit directly from the water quality 
protection that SRBA provides through the Clean Rivers Program and benefit from 
SRBA’s participation in the water planning process. With both of those ideas in mind, staff 
recommends approval of this resolution to contribute $70,000 to SRBA annually to begin 
in fiscal year 2025 to help support their efforts in water quality and water planning.     

A motion was made by Van Alexander and seconded by Sonja Hubbard to approve RESO 
20240828-05 contributing funds to the Sulphur River Basin Authority (SRBA) to help 
support its water quality protection and water planning efforts in the basin. The motion 
passed unanimously.  

G. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution authorizing the Executive 
Director/CEO to execute an interlocal agreement with the Ark-Tex Council of 
Governments (ATCOG) for submission of an application for a Defense Economic 
Adjustment Assistance Grant for funding for the Industrial Wastewater Facility. 

This item pertains to an interlocal agreement for ATCOG to assist Riverbend in submitting 
an application for a DEAAG grant for funding to go toward the proposed Industrial 
Wastewater Facility.  The interlocal agreement would be to submit the application for the 
grant.  Then, if successful, there would be another full management agreement between 
Riverbend and ATCOG for the administration of the grant.  That would be a two-year 
agreement for $50,000, but would come back to the board for approval, if the application 
for grant funding is successful.  Staff recommends approval.   

A motion was made by Tina Veal Gooch and seconded by Van Alexander to approve 
RESO 20240828- authorizing the Executive Director/CEO to execute an interlocal 
agreement with the Ark-Tex Council of Governments (ATCOG) for submission of an 
application for a Defense Economic Adjustment Assistance Grant for funding for the 
Industrial Wastewater Facility. The motion passed unanimously.  

H. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution authorizing the Executive 
Director/CEO to execute a construction contract with Francis Excavating, LLC. 

Eli Hunt, Director of Operations, provided that this item is regarding the rehabilitation of 
a wastewater drying bed at the Ron Collins Wastewater facility. MTG Engineers has been 
hired for design and construction management services for the project, and recently 
requested bids for the construction project.  Riverbend received four bids.  They were from 
Four Thirteen Inc., Francis Excavating, LLC, Hart Construction, and Texarkana Concrete 
Construction, Inc.  The submittal proposals were evaluated by a team of RWRD staff, as 
described in the bid documents. Based on that evaluation, staff recommends that Francis 
Excavating, LLC’s proposal offers the best value to RWRD.  Funds are available for this 
project.   

10



A motion was made by Sonja Hubbard and seconded by Lynn Davis to approve RESO 
20240828-07 authorizing the Executive Director/CEO to execute a construction contract 
with Francis Excavating, LLC for the rehabilitation of a drying bed at the Ron Collins 
Wastewater Facility. The motion passed unanimously.  

VIII. Riverbend Reports 

A. Board Members 

No reports.   

B. Executive Director/CEO 

Kyle Dooley provided the following updates: 

Regional Water System Project: Brian Strickland with Pape Dawson provided an update.  
All three design firm contracts were signed for the final portion of planning, design, and 
bid services. The design firms have identified areas for additional data with regards to 
geotechnical investigation and survey. Status meetings and site visits have been scheduled 
for mid-September. The geotechnical investigation for scope has been agreed upon and just 
this morning a site survey was conducted to mark areas for boring. The borings decrease 
the risk during tunneling operations and structural foundation design. The Environmental 
Assessment was reviewed by USACE Fort Worth district and returned for comment. The 
comments are being addressed and the Environmental Assessment will be returned to the 
USACE. We expect another round of comments after their second review. We have bi-
weekly meetings with the operations division at USACE that will continue throughout the 
outgrant process. The fieldwork for the antiquities permit was conducted and the data has 
been reviewed. The final report is being drafted for concurrence from Texas Historical 
Commission. The Corps has asked us to run RiverWare software for the lake modeling. 
We have subcontracted a firm specializing in modeling to create it for us and have verified 
with USACE the inputs to run the program. The output will be a Technical Memorandum 
with a summary of results. Finally, TWDB is expected to release the Drinking Water State 
Revolving Funds projects for 2025. RWRD is expected to be above the cut line for the 

additional funding applied for in March. 

Industrial Wastewater Plant: We are waiting to hear back from Hilltop on the funding 
available for this project. We are waiting to hear back from 2 banks with terms so that we 
can make an informed decision.  

No action taken.  

IX.   Executive Session 

The board stood at ease at 1:17 p.m. 

The board reconvened in Executive Session at 1:20 p.m. with quorum pursuant to sections 
551.071 and 551.072 of the Texas Open Meetings Act. 

11



The board came out of Executive Session at 1.58 p.m.  

The board reconvened with quorum at 2:00 p.m.  

X. Next Riverbend Meetings 

Riverbend Regular Meeting, September 25, 2024 at 12:00 p.m. at Riverbend Offices, 228 
A Texas Avenue, New Boston, Texas 75570. 

XI.   Adjournment 

With no additional business to be discussed, a motion was made by Van Alexander and 
seconded by Lynn Davis to adjourn the meeting at 2:01 p.m. The motion passed 
unanimously. 

The minutes of the Riverbend Water Resources District Board of Directors meeting, held on 
August 28, 2024, were read, and approved on the 25th day of September 2024. 

_______________________________________   
Steve Mayo, President 

Attest:  

________________________________________  
Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/ CEO

12



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  
RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 25, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM IV. B. 
RWRD RESO 20240925-01 

Member Entities True-Up 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13



   
 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20240925-01 
 

ADOPTING THE FY 2025 MEMBER ENTITIES’ TRUE-UP AND WHOLESALE 
WATER RATES AND FEES OF THETEXARKANA WATER UTILITIES 

 
 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation district 
created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 
Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 
District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is charged with oversight of the annual 
True-Up conducted amongst and between the City of Texarkana, Texas and all Member Entities; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District held an annual True-Up meeting on July 
17, 2024 at the Riverbend offices to discuss the True-Up Process and information provided by the 
City of Texarkana, Texas and its water department through Texarkana Water Utilities. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Riverbend 
Water Resources District hereby adopts the FY 2025 Member Entities’ True-Up and wholesale 
water rates and fees of the Texarkana Water Utilities. 
 
 PASSED and APPROVED this 25th day of September 2024 
 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Steve Mayo, President 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Tina Veal Gooch, Secretary 
 
Attached: 2025 Member City Rate Calculation  

14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  
RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 25, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM IV. C. 
RWRD RESO 20240925-02 

Regional Water Facility  
Fund Debt Rate 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

48



   
 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20240925-02 
 

ADOPTING THE FY 2025 REGIONAL WATER TREATMENT  
FACILITY DEBT SERVICE RATE 

 
 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation district 
created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 
Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 
District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District presented the Regional Water Facility 
Fund budget on July 17, 2024 to discuss the project progress including the debt service rate;  
 
 WHEREAS, Due to the extension of bond closing dates, the proposed debt service rate is 
shown to stay at the current rate of $2.40/1000 gallons used for FY 25.    
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Riverbend 
Water Resources District hereby adopts the FY 25 Regional Water Treatment Facility Debt Service 
Rate of $2.40/1000 gallons. 
 
 PASSED and APPROVED this 25th day of September 2024 
 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Steve Mayo, President 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Tina Veal Gooch, Secretary 
 
  
Attached: Riverbend Water Treatment Project Debt Rate Structure 

49



Budget Budget Proposed

FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025

Revenue

Minimum Monthly Payments 4,296,050$      8,617,448$      8,615,444$      

Interest Income 2,161,063 1,385,180 4,000,000

Unrealized Gain/(Loss) (538,532) - 50,000

Total Revenue  5,918,581 10,002,628 12,665,444

Expense

Bond Issuance Costs (225,000) (1,492,000) -
Interest Expense (1,565,230) (1,868,132) (2,082,731)

Finance and Wire Fees (1,750) (2,000) (8,500)

Total Expense (1,791,980) (3,362,132) (2,091,231)

Total Revenue (Expenses) 4,126,601$      6,640,496$      10,574,213$    

Debt Service for 2025 = $5,531,899

Riverbend Water Resources District

Regional Water System Facilities Fund - Proposed Budget 

FY 2025

50



Riverbend Water Resources District

Regional Water System Facility Fund

2025 Minimum Monthly Payments Budget

Yearly Gallonage

(1,000's)
Yearly x 2.4 Fee

Monthly 

Gallonage

(1000's)

Monthly x 

2.4 Fee

Per Contract

Annona, TX 9,522.930 * $22,855.03 793.58 $1,904.59 

Avery, TX 20,638.900 # $49,533.36 1,719.91 $4,127.78 

Central Bowie County Water Supply Corporation 246,899.193 * $592,558.06 20,574.93 $49,379.84 

Hooks, TX 163,383.400 * $392,120.16 13,615.28 $32,676.68 

Leary, TX 17,403.390 # $41,768.14 1,450.28 $3,480.68 

Maud, TX 49,541.000 * $118,898.40 4,128.42 $9,908.20 

Nash, TX 98,893.000 * $237,343.20 8,241.08 $19,778.60 

New Boston, TX 385,448.976 # $925,077.54 32,120.75 $77,089.80 

Oak Grove Water Supply Corporation 25,450.450 * $61,081.08 2,120.87 $5,090.09 

Redwater, TX 138,315.500 * $331,957.20 11,526.29 $27,663.10 

Texarkana, TX 2,266,466.516 * $5,439,519.64 188,872.21 $453,293.30 

Wake Village, TX 167,805.000 * $402,732.00 13,983.75 $33,561.00 

Total 3,589,768.255 $8,615,443.81 299,147.35 $717,953.65 

* Yearly Gallonage per Water Supply Contracts minimum quantity (2017-18) 

# FY24 Estimated Consumption (1000 Gallons) 3 year average per the MC Water Rate Calculation 2025 (pages 19-20)

Minimum Monthly Payments
ANNUAL MONTHLY

51



Month Billed October November December January February March April May June July August September

Meter readings from: Sept, 2023 Oct, 2023 Nov, 2023 Dec, 2023 Jan, 2024 Feb, 2024 Mar, 2024 Apr, 2024 May, 2024 Jun, 2024 Jul, 2024* Aug, 2024 * TOTAL % of Usage

Annona, TX 2,492.874 1,872.430 1,731.342 2,191.960 2,248.275 2,192.163 3,538.825 909.694 929.020 899.590 1,083.376 1,417.121 21,506.670 0.55%

Avery, TX 2,081.500 2,007.800 1,996.500 2,183.600 2,130.100 1,969.000 2,227.300 1,479.400 1,667.400 1,402.000 1,683.000 1,598.500 22,426.100 0.57%

Central Bowie County WSC 21,397.946 17,752.120 18,934.430 18,290.510 20,632.220 18,000.200 19,452.270 14,818.970 16,788.600 18,425.408 30,974.257 24,947.385 240,414.316 6.13%

Hooks, TX 15,174.000 12,705.000 11,790.000 13,216.000 17,628.000 11,091.000 12,003.000 10,393.000 12,463.000 14,507.000 14,829.000 15,907.000 161,706.000 4.12%

Leary, TX 2,830.480 1,760.410 1,649.500 1,576.300 2,900.550 2,556.840 2,363.690 1,834.830 2,023.620 1,979.340 2,342.760 2,288.180 26,106.500 0.67%

Maud, TX 4,886.000 4,535.000 4,514.000 4,809.000 4,878.000 3,783.000 3,026.000 2,495.000 3,013.000 3,372.000 6,228.000 5,909.000 51,448.000 1.31%

Nash, TX 5,063.000 7,372.000 7,303.000 7,603.000 8,227.000 7,134.000 7,591.000 6,920.000 7,295.000 7,179.000 9,003.000 9,019.000 89,709.000 2.29%

New Boston, TX 16,360.000 28,151.000 11,913.000 13,185.000 25,477.000 24,469.000 24,271.000 21,994.978 27,457.000 28,233.000 42,571.000 30,306.000 294,387.978 7.51%

Oak Grove WSC 1,172.460 1,585.140 1,566.200 2,104.360 2,405.560 2,021.530 2,159.310 1,727.140 1,728.400 2,052.790 2,243.940 2,416.000 23,182.830 0.59%

Redwater, TX 12,658.750 8,306.275 7,837.825 10,703.130 10,398.340 9,085.070 9,718.630 8,661.240 8,224.630 8,965.810 12,345.400 15,549.200 122,454.300 3.12%

Texarkana, TX 219,122.431 202,490.832 228,044.335 214,291.659 235,482.922 245,440.408 254,795.461 236,223.948 249,296.407 264,538.803 162,982.975 198,291.146 2,711,001.327 69.14%

Wake Village, TX 15,394.000 12,453.000 12,178.000 11,364.000 10,461.000 10,878.000 12,790.000 11,356.000 13,606.000 12,567.000 15,958.000 17,677.000 156,682.000 4.00%

TOTAL 318,633.441 300,991.007 309,458.132 301,518.519 342,868.967 338,620.211 353,936.486 318,814.200 344,492.077 364,121.741 302,244.708 325,325.532 3,921,025.021 100.00%

* August and September 2024 quantities are estimated as the FY Estmated Consumption per the MC Water Rate Calculation 2025

FY 2024 MEMBER CITIES ACTUAL USAGE QUANTITIES

(X 1,000 GALLONS)

52



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

PROJECTED BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM FACILITIES FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Variance with % of

Budget Actual Budget Budget

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

     Minimum monthly payments 8,617,448$      10,279,216$  1,661,768$       119.28%

     Interest income 1,385,180 4,460,000 3,074,820 321.98%

     Unrealized Gain/Loss - 1,079,125 1,079,125

     Bond issuance costs (1,492,000) - 1,492,000 0.00%

     Bond interest expense (2,104,132) (2,126,846) 22,714 101.08%

     Arbitrage rebate - (1,383,287) 1,383,287

     Wire Fees (2,000) (8,500) (6,500) 425.00%

         Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 6,404,496 12,299,708 8,707,214 192.05%

Change in net position 6,404,496 12,299,708 5,895,212 -192.05%

Net position, beginning of year 11,173,856 11,173,856 - 100.00%

Net position, end of year 17,578,352$    23,473,564$  5,895,212$       133.54%

53



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  
RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 25, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM VI. A. 
RWRD RESO 20240925-03 

City of Maud True-Up 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

54



   
 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20240925-03 
 

ADOPTING THE FY 2025 CITY OF MAUD SERVICE CONTRACT TRUE-UP  
 
 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation district 
created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 
Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 
District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Maud, Texas formed in 1941 is a General Law Municipality 
operating under an aldermanic form of government consisting of a mayor and five aldermen in 
accordance with applicable state statutes, serving a current population of 1,056 residents based on 
the most recent 2010 Census; and 
 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District and the City of Maud, Texas entered into 
interlocal water and wastewater services agreements on April 18, 2023 and October 1, 2022 
respectively; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in compliance with the water and wastewater agreements, Riverbend Water 
Resources District held a meeting on July 17, 2024 at the Riverbend offices to discuss the True-Up 
Process and new contract amounts with the City of Maud, Texas. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Riverbend 
Water Resources District hereby adopts the FY 2025 City of Maud Service Contract True-Up. 
 
 PASSED and APPROVED this 25th day of September 2024  
 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Steve Mayo, President 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Tina Veal Gooch, Secretary 
 
 
Attached: 2025 City of Maud Service Contract True-Up Documents 

55



Waste Water Billed Difference Water Billed Difference Actual Billed Difference Total

FY 24 Actual Contract Cost Actual vs. Actual Contract Cost Actual vs. Cost Contract  Cost Actual vs. Over/Under 

Month Cost Waste Water Billed Cost Water Billed Admin Fee Admin Fee Billed Billed

Jun-23 $9,920.70 $8,556.00 $1,364.70 $831.77 $1,745.00 ($913.23) $974.17 $1,027.00 ($52.83) $398.64

Jul-23 $9,928.13 $8,556.00 $1,372.13 $88.00 $1,745.00 ($1,657.00) $907.46 $1,027.00 ($119.54) ($404.41)

Aug-23 $21,854.63 $8,556.00 $13,298.63 $19.65 $1,745.00 ($1,725.35) $1,981.81 $1,027.00 $954.81 $12,528.09

Sep-23 $7,416.34 $8,556.00 ($1,139.67) $182.00 $1,745.00 ($1,563.00) $688.41 $1,027.00 ($338.59) ($3,041.26)

Oct-23 $10,804.08 $8,556.00 $2,248.08 $792.45 $1,745.00 ($952.55) $1,050.65 $1,027.00 $23.65 $1,319.17

Nov-23 $9,442.48 $8,556.00 $886.48 $1,577.09 $1,745.00 ($167.91) $998.37 $1,027.00 ($28.63) $689.94

Dec-23 $12,742.26 $8,556.00 $4,186.26 $291.99 $1,745.00 ($1,453.01) $1,180.90 $1,027.00 $153.90 $2,887.15

Jan-24 $9,826.85 $8,556.00 $1,270.85 $1,472.19 $1,745.00 ($272.81) $1,023.69 $1,027.00 ($3.31) $994.73

Feb-24 $12,910.73 $8,556.00 $4,354.73 $523.91 $1,745.00 ($1,221.09) $1,217.18 $1,027.00 $190.18 $3,323.81

Mar-24 $14,958.48 $8,556.00 $6,402.48 $4,477.38 $1,745.00 $2,732.38 $1,760.89 $1,027.00 $733.89 $9,868.75

Apr-24 $9,692.53 $8,556.00 $1,136.53 $3,470.47 $1,745.00 $1,725.47 $1,192.57 $1,027.00 $165.57 $3,027.57

May-24 $14,749.71 $8,556.00 $6,193.71 $194.26 $1,745.00 ($1,550.74) $1,353.92 $1,027.00 $326.92 $4,969.90

Total: $144,246.89 $102,672.00 $41,574.89 $13,921.16 $20,940.00 ($7,018.84) $14,330.03 $12,324.00 $2,006.03 $36,562.08

Waste Water Water Admin Fee Total

FY 24 True-Up: $41,574.89 ($7,018.84) $2,006.03 $36,562.08 Under billed when compared to contract amount for FY24

Monthly Cost for FY 24: $3,464.57 ($584.90) $167.17 $3,046.84 Monthly cost to be added to FY 25 amount

Current FY 24 Contract Rate: $8,556.00 $1,745.00 $1,027.00 $11,328.00

Current Contract Rate w/ Prev True Up Added: $13,039.49 Current FY 24 Monthly Payment

FY 25 Monthly Rate w/ True-Up Added: $12,020.57 $1,160.10 $1,194.17 $14,374.84 10.24% Increase from Previous Year

FY 25 Annual Rate: $144,246.89 $13,921.16 $14,330.03 $172,498.08 Total FY 25 Contract Amount 

Fiscal Year 24 Maud Water and Waste Water True Up

56



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  
RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 25, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM VI. B. 
RWRD RESO 20240925-04 

Board Officers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

57



 

   
   

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20240925-04 
 

AFFIRMING THE 2025 ELECTED OFFICERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT 

 
 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation 
district created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 
Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 
District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is required by law to elect officers to its 
Board of Directors; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District traditionally rotates the officer positions 
on an annual basis, so as to allow the maximum participation and leadership opportunity by each 
Director; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Riverbend 
Water Resources District hereby affirms the 2025 Elected Officers, as follows: 
           

   Lynn Davis, President 
   Sonja Hubbard, Vice President  
   Tina-Veal Gooch, Treasurer  

Van Alexander, Secretary 
Steve Mayo, Past President 

 
 PASSED and APPROVED this 25th day of September 2024 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Steve Mayo, President 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Tina Veal Gooch, Secretary 

58



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  
RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 25, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM VI. C. 
Riverbend Calendar and 
Board Meeting Schedule 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

59



Oct-24 Apr-25

16 - Regular Board Meeting @ 12:00 p.m. 18 - Riverbend Office Closed for Good Friday

23 - Regular Board Meeting @ 12:00 p.m.

Nov-24 May-25

11 - Riverbend Office Closed for Veteran’s Day 26 - Regular Board Meeting @ 12:00 pm

20 - Regular Board Meeting @ 12:00 p.m. 28 - Riverbend Office Closed for Memorial Day

28 & 29 - Riverbend Office Closed for Thanksgiving Holidays

Dec-24 Jun-25

No Regular Board Meeting 19 - Riverbend Office Closed for Juneteenth

23 - 25 - Riverbend Office Closed for Christmas 25 - Regular Board Meeting @ 12:00 p.m.

Jan-25 Jul-25

1 - Riverbend Office Closed for New Year's Day 4 - Riverbend Office Closed for Independence Day

20 - Riverbend Office Closed for MLK Day 23 - Regular Board Meeting @ 12:00 p.m.

22 - Regular Board Meeting @ 12:00 p.m.

Feb-25 Aug-25

17 - Riverbend Office Closed for Presidents Day 27 - Regular Board Meeting @ 12:00 p.m.

26 - Regular Board Meeting @ 12:00 p.m.

Mar-25 Sep-25

26 - Regular Board Meeting @ 12:00 p.m. 1 - Riverbend Office Closed for Labor Day

24 - Regular Board Meeting @ 12:00 p.m.

2024-2025 Calendar

All meetings are to be held at Riverbend Water Resources District offices,                                                                                                   

228A Texas Ave, New Boston, TX 75570 unless otherwise noted above.

60



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  
RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 25, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM VI. D. 
RWRD RESO 2024925-05 

Proposed Amended 2024 Budgets 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

61



 

   
  

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20240925-05 
 

ADOPTING THE PROPOSED AMENDED FY 2024 ADMINISTRATIVE MEMBER 
FUND BUDGET, THE PROPOSED AMENDED FY 2024 WET UTILITY FUND BUDGET, 
AND THE PROPOSED AMENDED FY 2024 REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM FACILITY 
FUND BUDGET OF THE RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT 

 
 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation 
district created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 
Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 
District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District first adopted all FY 2024 Budgets on 
September 27, 2023; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District deems it necessary to revise the FY 2024 
Budgets further to incorporate necessary adjustments to certain line items. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Riverbend 
Water Resources District hereby adopts the Proposed Amended FY 2024 Administrative Member 
Fund Budget, the Proposed Amended FY 2024 Wet Utility Fund Budget, and the Proposed 
Amended FY 2024 Regional Water System Facilities Fund Budget of Riverbend Water Resources 
District. 
 
 PASSED and APPROVED this 25th day of September 2024 
 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Steve Mayo, President 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Tina Veal Gooch, Secretary 
 
 
Attached:  Proposed Amended FY 2024 Administrative Member Fund Budget 

Proposed Amended FY 2024 Wet Utility Fund Budget  
  Proposed Amended FY 2024 Regional Water System Facilities Fund Budget 

62



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  
RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 25, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed Amended FY 2024 
Administrative Member  

Fund Budget 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

63



Final

Budget

Revenue
10-000-41000 Riverbend Fee 188,630$          
10-000-71000 Transfer from Wet Utilities 280,000
10-000-72000 Use of Prior Year Equity 156,329
10-000-80000 Interest Income 100

625,059
Expense
10-000-61501 Travel Expenses 18,000
10-000-62700 Consulting 200,000
10-000-64010 Advertising 1,200
10-000-64030 Bank Service Fees 100
10-000-64455 Subscriptions 800
10-000-65000 Auditing 5,000
10-000-65064 Cell Phone (40%) 748
10-000-65080 Community Relations/PR 8,000
10-000-65084 Conferences & Seminars 4,700
10-000-65167 Dues & Memberships 9,083
10-000-65177 Engineering Misc 20,000
10-000-65200 Health Insurance (40%) 8,403
10-000-65300 Legal & Professional Fees 27,500
10-000-65320 Meetings Expense 6,000
10-000-65334 Military Affairs 11,000
10-000-65400 Office supplies and expense 3,300
10-000-65450 Other Employment Costs (40%) 3,140
10-000-65500 Payroll Taxes (40%) 12,155
10-000-65520 Pension (40%) 17,655
10-000-65640 Regional Planning 12,000
10-000-65660 RWMP Projects 48,000
10-000-65710 Salaries & Wages (40%) 151,236
10-000-65810 Training, Travel, & Licenses (40%) 2,000
10-000-65900 Unemployment Obligations (40%) 591
10-000-65905 Uniforms (40%) 400
10-000-65910 Workers Compensation (40%) 48
10-000-65930 Web Design & Maintenance 4,000
10-000-90240 Misc. Special Projects 50,000

625,059

-$                           -$                        Fund 10 Total: -$                                 

50,000 -
4,000 -

Proposed Amended FY2024 Budget - Admin Fund

Original

Budget

Budget

Amendments

Expense Total: 615,059 10,000

591 -
400 -

48 -

2,000 -

50,000 (2,000)
141,236 10,000

10,000 2,000

3,300 -
3,140 -

12,155 -
17,655 -

8,403 -

9,083 -

-

27,500 -
-

11,000
6,000

4,700 -

748 -

20,000 -

800 -
5,000 -

8,000 -

-
1,200 -

100 -

221,158$                    (32,528)$              

Riverbend Water Resources District

Revenue Total: 615,059 10,000
100 -

230,000 50,000
163,801 (7,472)

18,000 -
200,000

64



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  
RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 25, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed Amended FY 2024  
Wet Utility  

Fund Budget 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

65



Final 

Budget

1,068,299$ 
256,100

38,520
5,200

75
750

1,368,944

2,680
42,017

(19,000)
2,200

22,949
33,333

266,661
2,357
6,000
2,956
3,000
3,607

10,000
(180)

17,000
16,500
(5,000)
4,000

(12,000)
-

20,500
353,700

25,104
296,700

17,500
500
500

11,000
9,000

88,000
5,000
8,500

-
(4,300)
2,500
4,000

12,000
3,200

51,000
7,000

1,310,484

58,460$       

Riverbend Water Resources District
Proposed Amended FY2024 Budget - Wet Fund

Original 

Budget

(117,445)$   175,905$         

1,484,364 (173,880)Expense Total:

Department 001 Total:

30-001-66805 Trash 7,000 -
30-001-66700 Utilities 48,500 2,500

30-001-66512 Sampling 12,000 -
30-001-66515 Small Tools & Equipment 1,500 1,700

30-001-66509 Safety 4,000 -
30-001-66506 Other Supplies 2,500 -

30-001-66500 Cleaning - -
30-001-66503 IS Supplies - (4,300)

30-001-66300 Facilities-Other 13,000 (4,000)
30-001-66200 Permits 13,000 (2,000)

30-001-66316 Plant 8,500 -

30-001-66308 Lines 102,500 (14,500)
30-001-66312 Other Maintenance 5,000 -

30-001-66100 Mileage for Call Outs 500 -

30-001-66000 Chemicals 16,000 1,500
30-001-66005 Other Materials 500 -

30-001-65950 Water Purchase Cost 300,000 (3,300)
30-001-65250 Insurance 23,604 1,500
30-001-65170 Depreciation Expense 344,500 9,200

30-001-65040 Capital Replacement 135,000 (135,000)
30-001-65110 Consulting 20,000 500

30-001-62900 Equipment Rental 4,000 -
30-001-62902 IS Equipment Rental - (12,000)

30-001-62806 IS Mileage Reimbursement - (5,000)

30-001-61005 IS Analyticals - (180)
30-001-62801 Equipment Maint & Repairs 10,000 7,000

30-001-61000 Analyticals 10,000 -

30-001-60505 Uniforms 3,000 -

30-001-62804 Fuel 15,000 1,500

30-001-60500 Unemployment Obligations 2,956 -

30-001-60465 Temporary Labor 2,357 -

30-001-60545 Workers Compensation 3,607 -

Cell Phone 2,680
30-001-60210

30-001-60475 Training, Travel, & Licenses 6,000 -

30-001-60385 Pension
30-001-60440 Salaries & Wages 266,661 -

Health Insurance 42,017
30-001-60250 IS Labor Wages 0 (19,000)
30-001-60360 Other Employment Costs

Budget

Adjustments

Department: 001 - Water
Revenue

Revenue Total:
Expense

30-001-42035
30-001-42040 IS Backflow Rental W - 750

1,366,919 2,025

IS Backflow Calibration - 75

30-001-41020
Army Revenue-Water Supply Charg 256,100 -

30-001-42020 Res & Comm Rev-Volumetric Charg 38,520 -
30-001-42030

Army Revenue-Volumetric Charge 1,068,299$ -$                      
30-001-41025

2,200 -

33,333 -
30-001-60380 Payroll Taxes 22,949 -

Res & Comm Rev-Backflow Calibra 4,000 1,200

-
-

30-001-60055

66



985,259$     
216,720

1,201,979

2,311
36,239

(15,056)
1,897

21,209
30,805

246,436
2,357
5,175
2,549
2,588
3,092

95,000
13,000

5,000
(2,500)
5,000

(5,600)
-

20,000
463,873

26,880
27,000
62,500

1,500
500

17,500
56,500
15,500

5,000
32,500

1,700
(1,700)
7,500
4,000

15,600
3,300

90,000
13,500

5,500
1,318,155

(116,176)$   (201,545)$   85,369$           

1,396,338 (78,183)Expense Total:

Department 002 Total:

30-002-66803 Grit 5,500 -

30-002-66700 Utilities 90,000 -
30-002-66802 Drying Bed Sludge 13,500 -

30-002-66515 Small Tools & Equipment 5,000 (1,700)
30-002-66512 Sampling 22,600 (7,000)

30-002-66506 Other Supplies 7,500 -
30-002-66509 Safety 4,000 -

30-002-66503 IS Supplies - (1,700)

30-002-66312 Other Maintenance 5,000 -
30-002-66316 Plant 32,500 -

30-002-66308 Lines 4,000 11,500
30-002-66300 Facilities-Other 22,500 34,000

30-002-66500 Cleaning 1,700 -

30-002-66200 Permits 17,500 -

30-002-66005 Other Materials 1,500 -
30-002-66100 Mileage for Call Outs 500 -

30-002-65950 Water Purchase Cost 22,000 5,000
30-002-66000 Chemicals 72,500 (10,000)

30-002-65250 Insurance 23,880 3,000

30-002-65110 Consulting 20,000 -
30-002-65170 Depreciation Expense 422,000 41,873

30-002-65040 Capital Replacement 135,000 (135,000)

30-002-62801 Equipment Maint & Repairs 8,000 5,000
30-002-61000 Analyticals 95,000 -

30-002-62902 IS Equipment Rental - (5,600)
30-002-62900 Equipment Rental 5,000 -

30-002-62804 Fuel 5,000 -
30-002-62806 IS Mileage Reimbursement - (2,500)

30-002-60545 Workers Compensation 3,092 -
30-002-60505 Uniforms 2,588 -

30-002-60475 Training, Travel, & Licenses 5,175 -
30-002-60500 Unemployment Obligations 2,549 -

30-002-60465 Temporary Labor 2,357 -
30-002-60440 Salaries & Wages 246,436 -

30-002-60380 Payroll Taxes 21,209 -
30-002-60385 Pension 30,805 -

Expense

30-002-60360 Other Employment Costs 1,897 -
30-002-60250 IS Labor Wages - (15,056)

30-002-60055 Cell Phone 2,311 -
30-002-60210 Health Insurance 36,239 -

Department: 002 - Wastewater
Revenue

1,194,793 7,186

30-002-41020 Army Revenue-Volumetric Charge 978,073$    7,186$              
30-002-42020 Res & Comm Rev-Volumetric Charg 216,720 -

Revenue Total:

67



1,254,775$ 
1,254,775$ 

3,048
47,794

2,503
26,229
38,096

304,769
2,357
6,825
3,362
3,412
4,077

60,000
8,000
7,000
2,000

20,000
65,840
26,355

157,000
500

20,000
30-003-66300 Facilities - Other 3,500

15,000
2,000

57,000
1,000
2,000
4,500
6,500
8,000

59,500
10,000
20,000

998,167

256,608$     

552,677$     
815,554
119,200

16,000
152,040

8,500
1,663,9711,594,631 69,340

30-004-80000 Interest Income 84,600 67,440
30-004-81100 Infrastructure Services Admin Fee 6,000 2,500

Revenue Total:

252,048$    4,560$              Department 003 Total:
Department: 004 - Overhead

Revenue

30-004-47000 Miscellanous Revenue - 16,000
30-004-45130 Res & Comm Rev-Facility Charge1 119,200 -

30-004-45115 Army Revenue-Facility Charge 2 569,277$    (16,600)$          
30-004-45120 Army Revenue-Facility Charge 3 815,554 -

30-003-66804 Phosphate 20,000 -
1,002,727 (4,560)

30-003-66800 Chrome 10,000 -

Expense Total:

30-003-66515 Small Tools & Equipment 8,000 -
30-003-66700 Utilities 59,500 -

30-003-66509 Safety 4,500 -
30-003-66512 Sampling 6,500 -

30-003-66500 Cleaning 1,000 -
30-003-66506 Other Supplies 1,000 1,000

30-003-66312 Other Maintenance 2,000 -
30-003-66316 Plant 58,000 (1,000)

30-003-66308 Lines 15,000

30-003-66100 Mileage for Call Outs 500 -
30-003-66200 Permits 20,000 -

30-003-62900 Equipment Rental 2,000 -
30-003-62804 Fuel 7,000 -

30-003-66000 Chemicals 160,000 (3,000)
30-003-65250 Insurance 22,755 3,600

30-003-65110 Consulting 20,000 -
30-003-65170 Depreciation Expense 78,000 (12,160)

30-003-61000 Analyticals 45,000 15,000
30-003-62801 Equipment Maint & Repairs 7,000 1,000

30-003-60505 Uniforms 3,412 -
30-003-60545 Workers Compensation 4,077 -

30-003-60475 Training, Travel, & Licenses 6,825 -
30-003-60500 Unemployment Obligations 3,362 -

30-003-60440 Salaries & Wages 304,769 -
30-003-60465 Temporary Labor 2,357 -

30-003-60385 Pension 38,096 -

30-003-60360 Other Employment Costs 2,503 -
30-003-60380 Payroll Taxes 26,229 -

30-003-60055 Cell Phone 3,048 -
30-003-60210 Health Insurance 47,794 -

Expense

Department: 003 - Industrial Wastewater
Revenue

1,254,775 -$                      
30-003-41020 Army Revenue-Volumetric Charge 1,254,775$ -$                      

Revenue Total:

12,500 (9,000)

68



33,613
31,003
45,031

2,000
23,000

7,000
2,462

63,110
1,000

14,400
300

6,500
1,460
7,000
4,810
2,600

380,244
6,000
3,600
2,365
1,600

17,000
190
240
400
350

20,490
254,786
106,717
(10,560)
280,000

1,308,711

355,260$     

142,498
13,976

156,474$     

438
7,650

401
5,503
8,876

63,400
1,095

539
548
938

13,500
10,751
28,859

142,498

13,976

568,128$     

1,000 -

300 -

30-004-62055 Cell Phone 2,462 -
30-004-62080 Computer, Reprod & Maint 77,600 (14,490)

30-004-62035 Building Maintenance 7,000 -
30-004-62025 Auditing 23,000 -

30-004-60385 Pension 45,031 -
30-004-62010 Advertising 2,000 -

30-004-60210 Health Insurance 33,613 -
30-004-60380 Payroll Taxes 31,003 -

Expense

30-004-62220 Insurance
30-004-62300 Legal & Professional Fees 21,400 (7,000)
30-004-62305 Licenses & Fees
30-004-62320 Meetings Expense 4,000 2,500
30-004-62350 Miscellaneous Fees 1,460 -
30-004-62355 Office supplies and expense 7,000 -
30-004-62362 Other Employment Costs 4,810 -
30-004-62415 Postage 2,600 -
30-004-62440 Salaries & Wages 360,244 20,000
30-004-62475 Training, Travel, & Licenses 6,000 -
30-004-62495 Travel 3,600 -
30-004-62500 Unemployment Obligations 2,365 -
30-004-62505 Uniforms 1,600 -
30-004-62510 Utilities-OH 13,000 4,000
30-004-62545 Workers Compensation 190 -
30-004-62550 Wright Express Fees 240 -
30-004-64030 Bank Service Charges 400 -
30-004-65002 Accounting 350 -
30-004-65175 Amortization Expense - 20,490
30-004-90100 Interest Expense 254,786 -
30-004-90430 Franchise Fees to TAC 106,717 -
30-004-90440 Gain/(Loss) On Disposal of Asset - (10,560)
30-004-90490 Transfer to Admin Fund 230,000 50,000

Expense Total: 1,243,771 64,940

Department 004 Total: 350,860$    4,400$              

Department: 005 - Infrastructure Services
Revenue

30-005-45300 Infrastructure Services Revenue 123,619 18,879
30-005-81100 Infrastructure Services Admin Fee 12,321 1,655

Revenue Total: 135,940$    20,534$           

Expense
30-005-60055 Cell Phone 438 -

61,220 2,180
30-005-60475 Training, Travel & Licenses 1,095 -

30-005-60210 Health Insurance 7,650 -
30-005-60360 Other Employment Costs 401 -
30-005-60380 Payroll Taxes 3,363 2,140

548

Department: 004 - Overhead (cont.)

30-005-61000 Analyticals - WW 10,500 3,000

30-005-60500 Unemployment Obligations 539 -
-

30-005-60545 Workers Compensation 938 -

30-005-60385 Pension 3,676 5,200
30-005-60440 Salaries & Wages

Department 005 Total: 12,321 1,655

Budget Code FY2024 Total: 296,239$    271,889$         

30-005-62804 Fuel 7,751 3,000
30-005-66506 Supplies - WW 25,500 3,359

Expense Total: 123,619 18,879

30-005-60505 Uniforms

69



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  
RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 25, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed Amended FY 2024 
Regional Water System 
Facilities Fund Budget 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

70



Final

Budget

Revenue

20-20A-76000 Minimum Monthly Payments 10,573,003$         

20-20A-80100 Interest Income 66,489

20-20B-80100 Interest Income 121,049

20-22A-80100 Interest Income 2,142,509

20-22A-80200 Investment Income 600,000

20-22B-80100 Interest Income 1,467,940

20-22B-80201 Investment Income 400,000

20-23A-80100 Interest Income 401,368

20-23B-80100 Interest Income 273,373

16,045,731

Expense

20-20A-90100 Bond Interest Expense 171,858

20-20A-90480 Finance and wire Fees 400

20-20B-90100 Bond Interest Expense 74,752

20-20B-90480 Finance and wire Fees 7,400

20-22A-90100 Bond Interest Expense 1,147,128

20-22A-90480 Finance and wire Fees 400 0

20-22B-90100 Bond Interest Expense 147,407

20-22B-90480 Finance and wire Fees 400

20-23A-90100 Bond Interest Expense 562,987

20-23A-90480 Finance and wire Fees 200

20-23B-90480 Finance and wire Fees 200

20-24A-90065 Bond Issuance Costs -

2,112,732

13,932,999$         

12,494 53,995

8,617,448$       1,955,555$        

31,930 89,119

688,651 1,453,858

- 400,000

472,826 995,114

Revenue Total:

74,035 199,338

- 600,000

105,244 296,124

171,858 -

400 -

10,002,628 6,043,103

1,147,128 -

74,752 -

400 7,000

562,987 -

147,407 -

400 -

Riverbend Water Resources District
Proposed Amended FY 2024 Budget - Facility Fund

Original

Budget

Budget

Amendments

Fund 20 Total: 6,404,496$       7,528,103$        

Expense Total: 3,598,132 (1,485,000)

200 -

1,492,000 (1,492,000)

200 -

71



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  
RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 25, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM VI. E. 
RWRD RESO 20240925-06 

Proposed 2025 Budgets 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

72



 
   

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 202409258-06 
 

ADOPTING THE FY 2025 ADMINISTRATIVE MEMBER FUND BUDGET, THE FY 2025 
WET UTILITIES FUND BUDGET, AND THE FY 2025 REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM 
FACILITIES FUND BUDGET OF RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT 

 
 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation district 
created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas Constitution, 
existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special District Local 
Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District desires to fulfill its fiduciary responsibility 
through the adoption of annual budgets for the Administrative Member Fund, the Wet Utilities Fund, 
and the Regional Water System Facilities Fund; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Executive Director/CEO and staff have prepared comprehensive budgets for 
review by the Member Entities and adoption by the Riverbend Water Resources District Board of 
Directors; and 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Riverbend 
Water Resources District hereby adopts the FY 2025 Administrative Member Fund Budget, the FY 
2025 Wet Utilities Fund Budget, and the FY 2025 Regional Water System Facilities Fund Budget of 
Riverbend Water Resources District. 
 
 PASSED and APPROVED this 25th day of September 2024 
 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Steve Mayo, President 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Tina Veal Gooch, Secretary 
 
Attached:  FY 2025 Administrative Member Fund Budget  

FY 2025 Wet Utilities Fund Budget 
FY 2025 Regional Water System Facilities Fund Budget 

 

73



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  
RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 25, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed FY 2025 
Administrative Member  

Fund Budget 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

74



Revenue
188,630$        217,798$        15.46%

280,000 350,000 25.00%

156,329 126,978 -18.78%

100 100 - 0.00%

625,059 694,876 11.17%

Expense
18,000 18,000 - 0.00%

200,000 200,000 - 0.00%

1,200 1,200 - 0.00%

100 100 - 0.00%

800 800 - 0.00%

5,000 5,000 - 0.00%

748 780 4.28%

8,000 8,000 - 0.00%

4,700 4,700 - 0.00%

9,083 9,083 - 0.00%

20,000 20,000 - 0.00%

8,403 9,220 9.72%

27,500 27,500 - 0.00%

6,000 6,000 - 0.00%

11,000 11,000 - 0.00%

3,300 3,300 - 0.00%

3,140 3,140 - 0.00%

12,155 11,132 -8.42%

17,655 23,156 31.16%

12,000 10,000 (2,000) -16.67%

48,000 50,000 2,000 4.17%

0 70,000
151,236 145,515 -3.78%

2,000 2,000 - 0.00%

591 591 - 0.00%

400 600 50.00%

48 59 22.92%

4,000 4,000 - 0.00%

50,000 50,000 - 0.00%

625,059 694,876 11.17%

-$                     -$                     0.00%Total Fund: 10 - Admin Fund: -$                     

10-000-65905 Uniforms (40%) 200
10-000-65910 Workers Compensation (40%) 11
10-000-65930 Web Design & Maintenance
10-000-90240 Misc. Special Projects

% Change

Riverbend Water Resources District
Proposed FY2025 Budget - Admin Fund

Total Expense: 69,817

10-000-65900 Unemployment Obligations (40%)

70,000
10-000-65710 Salaries & Wages (40%) (5,721)

Account Name
Increase /

(Decrease)

(1,023)
10-000-65520 Pension (40%) 5,501
10-000-65640 Regional Planning

Meetings Expense
10-000-65334 Military Affairs

10-000-65810 Training, Travel, & Licenses (40%)

10-000-65450 Other Employment Costs (40%)
10-000-65500 Payroll Taxes (40%)

10-000-65660 RWMP Projects
10-000-65670 SRBA Partnership

Cell Phone (40%) 32

10-000-65400 Office supplies and expense

10-000-65084 Conferences & Seminars
10-000-65167 Dues & Memberships
10-000-65177 Engineering Misc
10-000-65200 Health Insurance (40%) 817
10-000-65300 Legal & Professional Fees
10-000-65320

Interest Income

10-000-65080 Community Relations/PR

10-000-61501 Travel Expenses
10-000-62700 Consulting
10-000-64010 Advertising
10-000-64030 Bank Service Fees
10-000-64455 Subscriptions
10-000-65000 Auditing
10-000-65064

Total Revenue: 69,817

Account Number
FY2024 FY2025

Fund: 10 - Admin Fund

10-000-41000 Riverbend Fee 29,168$          
10-000-71000 Transfer from Wet Utilities 70,000
10-000-72000 Use of Prior Year Equity (29,351)
10-000-80000

75



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  
RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 25, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed FY 2025 
Wet Utility 

Fund Budget 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

76



Department: 001 - Water

Revenue

30-001-41020 1,068,299.00$   1,059,181.00$     (9,118.00)$        -0.85%

30-001-41025 256,100 215,000 (41,100) -16.05%

30-001-42020 38,520 38,520 - 0.00%

30-001-42030 5,200 4,000 (1,200) -23.08%

30-001-42035 75 - (75) -100.00%

30-001-42040 750 - (750) -100.00%
1,368,944 1,316,701 (52,243) -3.82%

Expense

30-001-60055 2,680 3,188 508 18.96%

30-001-60210 42,017 48,979 6,962 16.57%

30-001-60250 (19,000) - 19,000 -100.00%

30-001-60360 2,200 2,338 138 6.27%

30-001-60380 22,949 22,654 (295) -1.29%

30-001-60385 33,333 46,738 13,405 40.22%

30-001-60440 266,661 293,711 27,050 10.14%

30-001-60465 2,357 2,357 - 0.00%

30-001-60475 6,000 6,375 375 6.25%

30-001-60500 2,956 3,140 184 6.22%

30-001-60505 3,000 3,188 188 6.27%

30-001-60545 3,607 4,239 632 17.52%

30-001-61000 10,000 10,000 - 0.00%

30-001-61005 (180) - 180 -100.00%

30-001-62801 17,000 17,000 - 0.00%

30-001-62804 16,500 15,000 (1,500) -9.09%

30-001-62806 (5,000) - 5,000 -100.00%

30-001-62900 4,000 4,000 - 0.00%

30-001-62902 (12,000) - 12,000 -100.00%

30-001-65040 - 60,000 60,000

30-001-65110 20,500 20,000 (500) -2.44%

30-001-65170 353,700 353,658 (42) -0.01%

30-001-65250 25,104 23,604 (1,500) -5.98%

30-001-65950 296,700 215,000 (81,700) -27.54%

30-001-66000 17,500 16,000 (1,500) -8.57%

30-001-66005 500 500 - 0.00%

30-001-66100 500 500 - 0.00%

30-001-66200 11,000 13,000 2,000 18.18%

30-001-66300 9,000 13,000 4,000 44.44%

30-001-66308 88,000 102,500 14,500 16.48%

30-001-66312 5,000 5,000 - 0.00%

IS Backflow Calibration

IS Backflow Rental W

Fund: 30 - Wet Fund

Army Revenue-Volumetric Charge

Army Revenue-Water Supply Charg

Res & Comm Rev-Volumetric Charg

Riverbend Water Resources District

Proposed FY2025 Budget - Wet Fund

Account Number
FY2024 FY2025

Increase /

(Decrease)
% Change

Account Name

Res & Comm Rev-Backflow Calibra

Pension

Salaries & Wages

Temporary Labor

Training, Travel, & Licenses

IS Labor Wages

Other Employment Costs

Payroll Taxes

Total Revenue:

Cell Phone

Health Insurance

IS Mileage Reimbursement

Equipment Rental

IS Equipment Rental

Capital Replacement

Analyticals

IS Analyticals

Equipment Maint & Repairs

Fuel

Unemployment Obligations

Uniforms

Workers Compensation

Permits

Facilities-Other

Lines

Water Purchase Cost

Chemicals

Other Materials

Mileage for Call Outs

Consulting

Depreciation Expense

Insurance

Other Maintenance

77



Account Number
FY2024 FY2025

Increase /

(Decrease)
% Change

Account Name

30-001-66316 8,500 8,500 - 0.00%

30-001-66503 (4,300) - 4,300 -100.00%

30-001-66506 2,500 2,500 - 0.00%

30-001-66509 4,000 4,000 - 0.00%

30-001-66512 12,000 12,000 - 0.00%

30-001-66515 3,200 1,500 (1,700) -53.13%

30-001-66700 51,000 48,500 (2,500) -4.90%

30-001-66805 7,000 7,000 - 0.00%
1,310,484 1,389,669 79,185 6.04%

58,460$              (72,968)$               (131,428)$         -224.82%

Department: 002 - Wastewater

Revenue

30-002-41020 985,259.00$      1,162,547.00$     177,288 17.99%

30-002-42020 216,720 216,720 0 0.00%
1,201,979 1,379,267 177,288 14.75%

Expense

30-002-60055 2,311 2,400 89 3.85%

30-002-60210 36,239 36,878 639 1.76%

30-002-60250 (15,056) - 15,056 -100.00%

30-002-60360 1,897 1,760 (137) -7.22%

30-002-60380 21,209 17,291 (3,918) -18.47%

30-002-60385 30,805 35,968 5,163 16.76%

30-002-60440 246,436 226,028 (20,408) -8.28%

30-002-60465 2,357 2,357 0 0.01%

30-002-60475 5,175 4,800 (375) -7.25%

30-002-60500 2,549 2,364 (185) -7.26%

30-002-60505 2,588 2,400 (188) -7.26%

30-002-60545 3,092 3,175 83 2.68%

30-002-61000 95,000 135,000 40,000 42.11%

30-002-62801 13,000 13,000 0 0.00%

30-002-62804 5,000 5,000 0 0.00%

30-002-62806 (2,500) - 2,500 -100.00%

30-002-62900 5,000 5,000 0 0.00%

30-002-62902 (5,600) - 5,600 -100.00%

30-002-65040 - 379,000 379,000

30-002-65110 20,000 20,000 0 0.00%

30-002-65170 463,873 463,873 0 0.00%

30-002-65250 26,880 23,880 (3,000) -11.16%

30-002-65950 27,000 19,000 (8,000) -29.63%

30-002-66000 62,500 72,500 10,000 16.00%

30-002-66005 1,500 1,500 0 0.00%

30-002-66100 500 500 0 0.00%

30-002-66200 17,500 17,500 0 0.00%

Total Expense:

Total Department: 001 - Water:

Army Revenue-Volumetric Charge

Sampling

Small Tools & Equipment

Utilities

Trash

Plant

IS Supplies

Other Supplies

Safety

Pension

Salaries & Wages

Temporary Labor

IS Labor Wages

Other Employment Costs

Payroll Taxes

Res & Comm Rev-Volumetric Charg

Total Revenue:

Cell Phone

Health Insurance

IS Mileage Reimbursement

Equipment Rental

IS Equipment Rental

Workers Compensation

Analyticals

Equipment Maint & Repairs

Fuel

Training, Travel, & Licenses

Unemployment Obligations

Uniforms

Permits

Water Purchase Cost

Chemicals

Other Materials

Mileage for Call Outs

Capital Replacement

Consulting

Depreciation Expense

Insurance

78



Account Number
FY2024 FY2025

Increase /

(Decrease)
% Change

Account Name

30-002-66300 56,500 22,500 (34,000) -60.18%

30-002-66308 15,500 4,000 (11,500) -74.19%

30-002-66312 5,000 5,000 0 0.00%

30-002-66316 32,500 32,500 0 0.00%

30-002-66500 1,700 1,700 0 0.00%

30-002-66503 (1,700) - 1,700 -100.00%

30-002-66506 7,500 7,500 0 0.00%

30-002-66509 4,000 4,000 0 0.00%

30-002-66512 15,600 22,600 7,000 44.87%

30-002-66515 3,300 5,000 1,700 51.52%

30-002-66700 90,000 90,000 0 0.00%

30-002-66802 13,500 13,500 0 0.00%

30-002-66803 5,500 5,500 0 0.00%
1,318,155 1,704,974 386,819 29.35%

(116,176)$          (325,707)$             (209,531)$         180.36%

Department: 003 - Industrial Wastewater

Revenue

30-003-41020 1,254,775.00$   1,351,876.00$     7.74%
1,254,775 1,351,876 97,101 7.74%

Expense

30-003-60055 3,048 3,413 365 11.98%

30-003-60210 47,794 52,436 4,642 9.71%

30-003-60360 2,503 2,503 - 0.00%

30-003-60380 26,229 23,318 (2,911) -11.10%

30-003-60385 38,096 48,504 10,408 27.32%

30-003-60440 304,769 304,810 41 0.01%

30-003-60465 2,357 2,357 - 0.00%

30-003-60475 6,825 6,825 - 0.00%

30-003-60500 3,362 3,362 - 0.00%

30-003-60505 3,412 3,412 - 0.00%

30-003-60545 4,077 4,514 437 10.72%

30-003-61000 60,000 85,000 25,000 41.67%

30-003-62801 8,000 8,000 - 0.00%

30-003-62804 7,000 7,000 - 0.00%

30-003-62900 2,000 2,000 - 0.00%

30-003-65040 - 25,000 25,000

30-003-65110 20,000 20,000 - 0.00%

30-003-65170 65,840 65,840 0 0.00%

30-003-65250 26,355 22,755 (3,600) -13.66%

30-003-66000 157,000 160,000 3,000 1.91%

30-003-66100 500 500 - 0.00%

30-003-66200 20,000 20,000 - 0.00%

30-003-66300 3,500 12,500 9,000 257.14%

Facilities-Other

Lines

Other Maintenance

97,101.00

Sampling

Small Tools & Equipment

Utilities

Drying Bed Sludge

Grit

Plant

Cleaning

IS Supplies

Other Supplies

Safety

Other Employment Costs

Payroll Taxes

Pension

Salaries & Wages

Total Revenue:

Cell Phone

Health Insurance

Total Expense:

Total Department: 002 - Wastewater:

Army Revenue-Volumetric Charge

Analyticals

Equipment Maint & Repairs

Fuel

Equipment Rental

Capital Replacement

Temporary Labor

Training, Travel, & Licenses

Unemployment Obligations

Uniforms

Workers Compensation

Mileage for Call Outs

Permits

Facilities-Other

Consulting

Depreciation Expense

Insurance

Chemicals

79



Account Number
FY2024 FY2025

Increase /

(Decrease)
% Change

Account Name

30-003-66308 15,000 15,000 - 0.00%

30-003-66312 2,000 2,000 - 0.00%

30-003-66316 57,000 58,000 1,000 1.75%

30-003-66500 1,000 1,000 - 0.00%

30-003-66506 2,000 2,000 - 0.00%

30-003-66509 4,500 4,500 - 0.00%

30-003-66512 6,500 6,500 - 0.00%

30-003-66515 8,000 8,000 - 0.00%

30-003-66700 59,500 59,500 - 0.00%

30-003-66800 10,000 10,000 - 0.00%

30-003-66804 20,000 20,000 - 0.00%
998,167 1,070,549 72,382 7.25%

Total Department: 003 - Industrial Wastewater: 256,608$            281,327$              24,719$             9.63%

Department: 004 - Overhead

Revenue

30-004-45115 552,677.00$      551,132.00$         (1,545.00)$        -0.28%

30-004-45120 815,554 3,090,000 278.88%

30-004-45130 119,200 119,200 - 0.00%

30-004-47000 16,000 16,000 - 0.00%

30-004-72000 - 66,541

30-004-80000 152,040 152,000 -0.03%

30-004-81100 8,500 6,000 -29.41%
1,663,971 4,000,873 2,336,902 140.44%

Expense

30-004-60210 33,613 36,878 3,265 9.71%

30-004-60380 31,003 28,404 (2,599) -8.38%

30-004-60385 45,031 59,085 14,054 31.21%

30-004-62010 2,000 2,000 - 0.00%

30-004-62025 23,000 23,000 - 0.00%

30-004-62035 7,000 7,000 - 0.00%

30-004-62055 2,462 2,670 208 8.45%

30-004-62080 63,110 77,600 14,490 22.96%

30-004-62220 1,000 1,000 - 0.00%

30-004-62300 14,400 21,400 7,000 48.61%

30-004-62305 300 300 - 0.00%

30-004-62320 6,500 4,000 (2,500) -38.46%

30-004-62350 1,460 1,460 - 0.00%

30-004-62355 7,000 7,000 - 0.00%

30-004-62362 4,810 4,810 - 0.00%

30-004-62415 2,600 2,600 - 0.00%

30-004-62440 380,244 371,298 (8,946) -2.35%

30-004-62475 6,000 6,000 - 0.00%

30-004-62495 3,600 3,600 - 0.00%

Lines

Other Maintenance

Utilities

Chrome

Phosphate

Total Expense:

Plant

Cleaning

Other Supplies

Safety

Sampling

Small Tools & Equipment

Use of Prior Year Equity 66,541.00

Interest Income (40.00)

Infrastructure Services Admin Fee (2,500.00)

Army Revenue-Facility Charge 2

Army Revenue-Facility Charge 3 2,274,446.00

Res & Comm Rev-Facility Charge1

Miscellanous Revenue

Computer, Reprod & Maint

Insurance

Legal & Professional Fees

Pension

Advertising

Auditing

Building Maintenance

Cell Phone

Total Revenue:

Health Insurance

Payroll Taxes

Postage

Salaries & Wages

Training, Travel, & Licenses

Travel

Licenses & Fees

Meetings Expense

Miscellaneous Fees

Office supplies and expense

Other Employment Costs

80



Account Number
FY2024 FY2025

Increase /

(Decrease)
% Change

Account Name

30-004-62500 2,365 2,365 0 0.00%

30-004-62505 1,600 2,400 800 50.00%

30-004-62510 17,000 13,000 (4,000) -23.53%

30-004-62545 190 234 44 23.16%

30-004-62550 240 240 - 0.00%

30-004-64030 400 400 - 0.00%

30-004-65002 350 350 - 0.00%

30-004-65175 20,490 - (20,490) -100.00%

30-004-90100 254,786 235,230 (19,556) -7.68%

30-004-90130 - 2,497,118 2,497,118

30-004-90430 106,717 113,658 6,941 6.50%

30-004-90440 (10,560) - 10,560 -100.00%

30-004-90490 280,000 350,000 70,000 25.00%
1,308,711 3,875,100 2,566,389 196.10%

355,260$            125,773$              (229,487)$         -64.60%

Department: 005 - Infrastructure Services

Revenue

30-005-45300 142,498.00$      158,168.00$         15,670.00$       11.00%

30-005-81100 13,976 14,330 2.53%
156,474 172,498 10.24%

Expense

30-005-60055 438 438 0.00%

30-005-60210 7,650 7,650 0.00%

30-005-60360 401 401 0.00%

30-005-60380 5,503 5,503 0.00%

30-005-60385 8,876 8,876 0.00%

30-005-60440 63,400 63,400 0.00%

30-005-60475 1,095 1,095 0.00%

30-005-60500 539 539 0.00%

30-005-60505 548 548 0.00%

30-005-60545 938 938 0.00%

30-005-61000 13,500 13,500 0.00%

30-005-62804 10,751 10,751 0.00%

30-005-66506 28,859 44,529 54.30%
142,498 158,168 11.00%

Total Department: 005 - Infrastructure Services: 13,976 14,330 2.53%

568,128 22,755 (545,373) -95.99%

568,128$            22,755$                (545,373)$         -95.99%

Unemployment Obligations

IWWTP Bond Interest Expense

Franchise Fees to TAC

Gain/(Loss) On Disposal of Asset

Wright Express Fees

Bank Service Charges

Accounting

Amortization Expense

Interest Expense

Uniforms

Utilities-OH

Workers Compensation

Infrastructure Services Revenue

Infrastructure Services Admin Fee

Total Revenue: 16,024.00

Transfer to Admin Fund

Total Expense:

Total Department: 004 - Overhead:

354.00

Salaries & Wages

Training, Travel & Licenses

Unemployment Obligations

Uniforms

Workers Compensation

Cell Phone

Health Insurance

Other Employment Costs

Payroll Taxes

Pension

Total Fund: 30 - Wet Fund:

Report Total:

Debt Service for 2025 = $675,942

Analyticals - WW

Fuel

Supplies - WW

Total Expense: 15,670.00

354.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

15,670.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

81



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  
RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 25, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed FY 2025 
Regional Water System 
Facilities Fund Budget 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

82



Revenue
FY 2024 FY 2025

Increase /

(Decrease)
% Change

10,573,003$       8,615,444$          -18.51%

66,489 45,789 -31.13%

121,049 104,888 -13.35%

2,142,509 1,960,430 -8.50%

600,000 25,000 -95.83%

1,467,940 1,353,591 -7.79%

400,000 25,000 -93.75%

401,368 335,313 -16.46%

273,373 199,990 -26.84%

16,045,731 12,665,445 -21.07%

Expense
171,858 171,419 -0.26

400 1,417 254.25
74,752 74,752 0.00

7,400 1,417 -80.85
1,147,128 1,115,838 -2.73

400 1,417 254.25
147,407 147,407 0.00

400 1,417 254.25
562,987 343,989 -38.90

200 1,417 608.50
- 229,326 0.00

200 1,416 608.00
2,113,132 2,091,232 -58.97

13,932,599$       10,574,213$       -24.10%

20-23B-90480 Finance and wire Fees 1,216

Debt Service for 2025 = $5,531,899

Total Expense: (21,900)

Total Fund: 20 - Facility Fund: (3,358,386)$             

20-23A-90480 Finance and wire Fees 1,217
20-23B-90100 Bond Interest Expense 229,326

20-22B-90480 Finance and wire Fees 1,017
20-23A-90100 Bond Interest Expense (218,998)

20-22A-90480 Finance and wire Fees 1,017
20-22B-90100 Bond Interest Expense (1)

20-20B-90480 Finance and wire Fees (5,983)
20-22A-90100 Bond Interest Expense (31,290)

20-20A-90480 Finance and wire Fees 1,017
20-20B-90100 Bond Interest Expense 0

20-20A-90100 Bond Interest Expense (439)

20-22B-80201 Investment Income (375,000)
20-23A-80100 Interest Income (66,055)
20-23B-80100 Interest Income (73,383)
Total Revenue: (3,380,286)

(182,079)
20-22A-80200 Investment Income (575,000)
20-22B-80100 Interest Income (114,349)

20-22A-80100 Interest Income

Riverbend Water Resources District
Proposed FY2025 Budget - Facility Fund

Fund: 20 - Facility Fund

20-20A-76000 Minimum Monthly Payments (1,957,559)$              
20-20A-80100 Interest Income (20,700)
20-20B-80100 Interest Income (16,161)

83



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  
RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 25, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM VI. F. 
RWRD RESO 20240925-07 

Industrial Wastewater  
Plant Construction  

Loan Terms 
 
 
 
 
 
 

84



 
 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20240925-07 
 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/CEO TO SELECT A LENDER  
FOR FUNDING FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW INDUSTRIAL 

WASTEWATER PLANT. 
 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District (“Riverbend”), created in 2009, is a 
conservation and reclamation district created under and essential to accomplish the purpose of 
Section 59, Article XVI, Texas Constitution, as set forth in Title 6, Special District Local Laws 
Code, Subtitle L, Municipal Water Districts, Chapter 9601, and is comprised of member entities 
(collectively referred to as “the Member Entities”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, a feasibility study regarding the condition and functionality of the current 
industrial wastewater facility was completed in 2018 by AECOM. This study determined that the 
construction of a new industrial wastewater plant is the most cost effective plan for Riverbend and 
for its customers; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Hilltop Securities, Inc., the financial advisor for Riverbend, has compiled 
offers from two financial institutions consisting of loan rates and terms of repayment from 
Simmons Bank and Regions Bank.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Riverbend Water Resources District 
authorizes the Executive Director/CEO to select Simmons Bank as the lender for funding for the 
construction of a new Industrial Wastewater Plant. 
 
 PASSED and APPROVED this 25th day of September 2024 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Steve Mayo, President 
 
 
ATTEST: 
  
____________________________________ 
Tina Veal Gooch, Secretary 
 
 
 
Attached: Rate Sheet Comparison  
     Simmons Bank Loan Term Document 

85



 
From: Marti Shew <marti.shew@hilltopsecurities.com> 
Sent: Thursday, September 19, 2024 2:48 PM 
To: Kyle Dooley <kyledooley@rwrd.org> 
Subject: FW: Riverbend Term Sheet Attached  
  
Hi Kyle- 
After further discussion with each bank and clarification of the proposed terms, in order to meet your 
objectives and get this project funded as quickly as possible, I’d recommend moving forward with the 
Simmons proposal. While the initial rate of the Regions proposal is lower, I think the following other 
provisions of their proposal are less flexible and present some insurmountable hurdles from a timing 
perspective. The main issues as I see them are as follows: 
  

 Regions wants a fully executed and amended contract from the Army to match their proposal- I 
think the time delay would continue to push the project costs above where they are today 
thereby making the project more expensive (even at the lower rate) 

 The district would lose flexibility in their banking relationships because Regions would require 
that they be the District’s depository bank 

  
While the Simmons bank proposal has a slightly higher initial rate, I do believe these other provisions 
provide ancillary benefit to the District to help offset that additional cost: 
  

 Simmons is offering the District a reduced debt service reserve fund requirement which means 
the District can issue less overall debt to fund the project 

 They’re offering a prepayment option after a 5yr period at 101%. While the 101% does produce 
a “prepayment penalty” or cost, it offers additional flexibility should the District want or need to 
exercise the option 

 The initial rate would be fixed for a 10yr period and then reset at the same index and spread as 
the initial rate, whereas the Regions proposal steps up to 12%. Under the Regions proposal, the 
District would have to negotiate or refinance the debt to ensure the overall debt service cost 
didn’t rise as result of the higher rate. The Simmons reset at the same index provides some 
flexibility that if rates stay the same or go down, the District wouldn’t have to refinance or 
renegotiate. This offers protection should there be market disruptions or extenuating 
circumstances in the future that prevented the District from refinancing the debt. 

  
Please let me know if you have any questions or if you’d like to discuss these issues further 
Thanks, 
Marti 
  

Marti Shew  
Hilltop Securities Inc.  
Managing Director | Investment Banker 
717 N Harwood St, Suite 3400 | Dallas, TX 75201 
direct: 214.953.8853 | work mobile: 469.830.2192  
marti.shew@hilltopsecurities.com | HilltopSecurities.com 
  
  
  

86

mailto:marti.shew@hilltopsecurities.com
mailto:kyledooley@rwrd.org
mailto:marti.shew@hilltopsecurities.com
http://www.hilltopsecurities.com/


 

 1 

 

 
 

Simmons Bank 
 

Date: September 19, 2024 
 
Simmons Bank (“Bank” or “Lender”) has received preliminary approval to offer Riverbend Water Resources District of 
Texarkana, Texas (“Borrower” or “District”) a proposal to purchase up to  $32,800,000 of its Industrial Wastewater Bonds, 
Series 2024.  This document serves as an outline of the proposed terms and conditions of the transaction between Lender 
and Borrower and the Bond to be purchased, as contemplated herein (the “Loan” or “Bond”) and does not purport to 
summarize all the conditions, covenants, representations, warranties, and other provisions which would be contained in 
final legal documentation of the transaction.  
 
The actual terms and conditions upon which the Lender extends credit to the Borrower are subject to further due 
diligence, satisfactory review of documentation, final credit approval, and such other conditions that may be determined 
by the Lender and its counsel.   
 
Terms of Proposed Loan Facility 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Borrower Riverbend Water Resources District, Texarkana, Texas 
 
Lender Simmons Bank 
 
Escrow Bank 
Account(s) Holder Simmons Bank shall hold the transaction-related Debt Service Reserve Fund (DSRF) and 

Project Fund (bond proceeds) in fully collateralized, fully liquid, interest-bearing Public 
Funds accounts at a rate paid of Fed Funds minus 150 bps (currently 3.50%).  

 
Paying Agent Simmons Bank  
 
Loan Amount Up to $32,800,000, evidenced by a single Bond Certificate issued to the Lender 
 
Purpose 1) Industrial wastewater treatment facility for use by the  Red River Army Depot, 

approved by the United States Government, per the 20-year Task Order dated 5/22/24, 
for construction and support of the new plant; 2) fund the DRSF at closing; and 3) 
payment of all issuing and borrowing costs 

 
Structure 20-year taxable Facility with call and put options at 11/15/2034 
 
Interest Rate & Default Rate Taxable fixed interest rate of 6.80% per annum, calculated on a 30/360 basis.  The Interest 

Rate includes the cost of holding the stated rate through the anticipated closing date of 
11/15/2024.   The stated rate also includes the cost of a 5-year lock-out period, making 
the Bonds callable at 101% of Par 11/15/29 through 11/15/34, and callable at 100% of 
Par thereafter.   
 

87



 

 2 

The stated taxable rate of 6.80% is equivalent to the 10-year US Treasury Bond Yield 
(3.70%) at close of business on 9/18/2024 (Resource Center | U.S. Department of the 

Treasury) plus 310 basis points.  Any repricing at 11/15/2034 or thereafter would be 
capped at a 310 basis point spread above the said index.  Should closing be delayed 
beyond the anticipated closing date of 11/15/2024, the Bond will be repriced at the same 
310 basis point spread above the said index. 
 
Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default that continues to exist past any applicable 
cure period therefor, a Default Rate of interest (the “Default Rate”) shall apply equal to 
the Interest Rate plus 4% per annum or maximum allowable under Texas statutes, if less, 
during the pendency of any such Event of Default. 

 
Repayment Semi-annual interest shall be payable on 5/15 and 11/15, beginning on 5/15/2025 
 

Annual principal installments commencing on 11/15/2025, and payable at each 
anniversary thereafter through final maturity on November 15, 2044 
 

  
Security/Repayment Source The District covenants and agrees to an irrevocable pledge of all Net Revenues derived 

from the operation of the System (with the exception of those in excess of the amounts 
required to establish and maintain special Funds created for repayment and security of 
similarly secured Bonds) for repayment of principal and interest on the Facility, 
constituting a first lien on the Net Revenues of the System. 

 
 Defaults Customary events of default, including, without limitation, (a) default in the payment of 

any principal or interest portion of the Bond when due; (b) any default under any 
financing documents related to the Bond, including failure to make any schedule payment 
when due or any payment within 60 days after notice, false representations or warranties, 
insolvency of the District, and cross-default with or breach of any other obligation to the 
Lender and continuance thereof past any applicable cure period therefor.  Upon the 
occurrent of any Event of Default, the Interest Rate shall increase to the Default Rate of 
the loan. 

 
 Failure by the Borrower to make annual principal and interest payments under the Bond 

shall be reportable to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board’s EMMA website, or any 
replacement disclosure vehicle of the MSRB, and to nationally recognized statistical rating 
agencies. 

 
Acceleration Events of Default shall trigger acceleration of all outstanding Principal and Interest 

payments.  
 
Covenants Debt Service Reserve Fund: 50% Maximum Annual Debt Service, springing to 100% 

should annual Debt Service Coverage Ratio fall below 1.10x for any fiscal year  
 
Rate Covenant: District shall maintain sum-sufficient Annual Debt Service Coverage of 
1.0x 
 
Additional Bonds Test: 1.25x Average Annual Debt Service 
 
 

88

https://home.treasury.gov/resource-center/data-chart-center/interest-rates/TextView?type=daily_treasury_yield_curve&field_tdr_date_value=2024
https://home.treasury.gov/resource-center/data-chart-center/interest-rates/TextView?type=daily_treasury_yield_curve&field_tdr_date_value=2024


 

 3 

Annual Reporting Audited financial statements of the District within 7 months of fiscal year-end, or within 
30 days of completion.  

 
 
Negotiated Transaction Both Borrower and Lender agree that any resulting Bond will be in the form of a privately 

negotiated bank loan between Lender and Borrower.  The Borrower will not be required 
to obtain a separate bond rating by a municipal securities rating agency.  The Bond will 
not be assigned a Standard & Poor’s CUSIP number. The Bond will not be registered with 
the Depository Trust Company (DTC). The Lender does not require an Official Statement, 
Offering Memorandum, or any other offering document, and the District will not be 
entering into a continuing disclosure agreement to provide ongoing disclosure with 
respect to the Bond pursuant to SEC Rule 15c2-12.  The Bond will not be registered with 
the Depository Trust Company or any other securities depository.  The obligations 
represented by the Bond will be classified by the Lender as a privately placed loan. 

 
Transferability The Bond will not be registered under the 1933 Act or any applicable state securities law 

and the Bond may not be transferred unless, in the opinion of counsel to the Lender, such 
transfer will not cause a violation of the 1933 Act, or any applicable state securities law. 
The Lender will not sell, transfer, assign, or otherwise dispose of the Bond or any interests 
therein (1) unless (a) we obtain from the purchaser and deliver to the District a suitable 
purchase agreement or written acknowledgement that such purchaser is a "qualified 
institutional buyer" as defined in Rule 144A promulgated under the 1933 Act, and (2) 
except in compliance with the applicable provisions of the 1933 Act, the 1934 Act, any 
rules and regulations promulgated under either the 1933 Act or the 1934 Act, and the 
applicable securities laws of any other jurisdiction, and in connection therewith, the 
Lender will furnish to any purchaser of the Bond all information required by applicable 
law. 

 
Disclaimer Simmons Bank and its affiliates are not Registered Municipal Advisors.  The Bond 

Purchaser/Lender is not providing advice, acting as an advisor, or making 
recommendations to municipal entities or obligated persons regarding municipal finance 
products or the issuance of municipal securities.   Lender is acting on its own behalf and 
does not owe a fiduciary duty to any municipal entity or obligated person pursuant to 
Section 15B of the Exchange Act with respect to the information and material contained 
herein. 

  
Fees Borrower assumes responsibility for all fees, expenses, issuance and borrowing costs, 

including any MAC fees and bank counsel review fees.  Bank counsel fees shall not exceed 
$15,000. 

  
Legal Opinion Bond counsel shall provide a legal opinion that is satisfactory to the Lender that shall 

include, but not limited to: 1) ) The Borrower has the authority under state of Texas law 
to issue this type of debt instrument; 2) related resolutions, ordinances and other loan 
documentation is valid and binding; and 3) All documents that the Borrower is party have 
been executed by authorized personnel. 

 
Warranties and  The usual representations and warranties in connection with the financing shall be 
Representations included in the Bond and related financing documents, including but not limited to 

absence of material adverse change, absence of material litigation, absence of default or 
unmatured default, representations regarding environmental issues, priority of the 
Bank’s liens, and compliance with all material requirements of law and contracts. 

89



 

 4 

 
USA Patriot Act The District represents and warrants to the Lender that it (including obligated persons, 

principals and/or affiliates) is not a Specially Designated National (SDN) or Blocked 
Person, as defined in Presidential Order 13224.  The District (including principals, 
obligated persons and affiliates) further represents and warrants that it is not acting 
(directly or indirectly) on behalf of any person named as a SDN or Blocked Person.  

 
Governing Law Loan documents shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas 
 
We are most appreciative of the opportunity to work with Riverbend Water Resources District.  Please let us know of your 
intent to move forward with the proposed terms by no later than September 27, 2024.  We look forward to partnering 
with you on this transaction. 
 
Sincerely, 

Michael Bradford   
Michael Bradford  
Corporate Division President 
Michael.bradford@simmonsbank.com  
 
 
 

90

mailto:Michael.bradford@simmonsbank.com

	Insert from: "Hilltop Recommendation.pdf"
	From: Marti Shew <marti.shew@hilltopsecurities.com> Sent: Thursday, September 19, 2024 2:48 PM To: Kyle Dooley <kyledooley@rwrd.org> Subject: FW: Riverbend Term Sheet Attached


